

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

**LAWS**  
OF THE  
**STATE OF MAINE**

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND NINTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION

January 3, 1979 to June 15, 1979

PUBLISHED BY THE DIRECTOR OF LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED, TITLE 3, SECTION 164, SUBSECTION 6.

---

Kennebec Journal  
Augusta, Maine  
1979

---

---

**PUBLIC LAWS**  
OF THE  
**STATE OF MAINE**  
AS PASSED AT THE  
**FIRST REGULAR SESSION**  
of the  
**ONE HUNDRED AND NINTH LEGISLATURE**  
1979

---

---

by the commission pursuant to this subsection as originally enacted, and whose present permits, in the opinion of the commission, need clarification, may be directed, upon reasonable notice given as provided, to appear before the commission for further public hearing, at which hearing evidence of regular operation as a contract carrier from March 1, 1932, to June 30, 1933, may be submitted, and the carrier may ~~supplement same by~~ **also submit as independent evidence of the scope of his grandfather rights** evidence of **other** regular operation ~~subsequent to said period by the carrier between January 1, 1975, and October 1, 1978,~~ and the commission shall issue an amended permit in accordance with the facts found on the original and new evidence presented.

**Sec. 2. 35 MRSA § 1555, sub-§ 3,** as amended by PL 1977, c. 46, is further amended by adding before the last sentence the following new sentence:

**Any contract carrier whose permits have been clarified pursuant to this subsection in the 6 months previous to the effective date of this sentence shall be granted a hearing and his permits clarified based upon the provisions of this subsection within 30 days following the effective date of this sentence.**

**Emergency clause.** In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this Act shall take effect when approved.

Effective May 25, 1979

## CHAPTER 285

S. P. 399 — L. D. 1204

**AN ACT to Transfer the Board of Registration for Professional Foresters from the Department of Conservation to the Department of Business Regulation.**

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:**

**Sec. 1. 32 MRSA § 5004, first sentence,** as enacted by PL 1975, c. 490, is amended to read:

A State Board of Registration for Professional Foresters is established **within the Department of Business Regulation** to administer the provisions of this chapter.

**Sec. 2. 32 MRSA § 5011-A, first sentence,** as enacted by PL 1977, c. 604, § 35 is amended to read:

On or before August 1st of each year, the board shall submit to the Commissioner of ~~Conservation~~ **Business Regulation**, for the preceding fiscal year

ending June 30th, its annual report of its operations and financial position, together with such comments and recommendations as the ~~commission~~ **board** deems essential.

**Sec. 3.** 32 MRSA § 5011-B, as enacted by PL 1977, c. 604, § 35, is amended to read:

**§ 5011-B. Budget**

The board shall submit to the Commissioner of ~~Conservation~~ **Business Regulation** its budgetary requirements in the same manner as is provided in Title 5, section 1665, and the commissioner shall in turn transmit these requirements to the Bureau of the Budget ~~without any revision, alteration or change.~~

**Sec. 4.** 32 MRSA § 5011-C is enacted to read:

**§ 5011-C. Employees**

The Commissioner of Business Regulation, with the advice and consent of the board, shall be empowered to appoint, subject to the Personnel Law, such employees as may be necessary to carry out this chapter. Any person so employed shall be located in the Department of Business Regulation and under the administrative and supervisory direction of the Commissioner of Business Regulation.

**Sec. 5.** 32 MRSA § 5015 as enacted by PL 1975, c. 490, is amended by adding before the first paragraph, the following new paragraph:

**The Central Licensing Division of the Department of Business Regulation shall compile and maintain a complete and up-to-date list of all licensed foresters in the State. The list shall be made available to any person upon request.**

**Sec. 6.** 32 MRSA § 5015, 2nd sentence, as enacted by PL 1975, c. 490 is amended to read:

It shall be the duty of the ~~secretary of the board~~ **Central Licensing Division** to notify, at his last registered address, every person registered under this chapter of the date of the expiration of his license and the amount of the fee that shall be required for its renewal for 2 years, such notice to be mailed at least one month in advance of the date of the expiration of said license.

Effective September 14, 1979

---

---

## CHAPTER 286

H. P. 969 — L. D. 1207

AN ACT to Extend a Barber Shop License 60 Days upon Death of the Barber to